1: 36: 15 PM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair

Fost er

HOUSE FI NANCE COW TTEE
March 28, 2017
1: 36 p. m

called the House Finance Commttee neeting

to order at 1:36 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve
Representati ve
Representative
Representati ve
Representati ve
Representative
Representati ve
Representati ve
Representative
Representati ve

VEMBERS ABSENT

Representati ve

ALSO PRESENT

Neal Foster, Co-Chair
Paul Seaton, Co-Chair
Les Gara, Vice-Chair
Jason G enn

David Guttenberg
Scott Kawasaki

Dan Otiz

Lance Pruitt

Cathy Tilton

Tammi e W1 son

St eve Thonpson

Brandon S Spanos, Deputy Director, Tax Di vi si on,

Depart ment of Revenue; Representative Chris Birch

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

None

SUMVARY

HB 115 | NCOVE TAX; PFD CREDI T; PERM FUND | NCOVE
HB 115 was HEARD and HELD in conmittee for
further consideration.

Co-Chair Foster reviewed the agenda for the day.

#hb115

HOUSE BI LL NO.

115

House Fi nance Committee 1

03/28/17 1:36 P.M



"An Act relating to the permanent fund dividend;
relating to the appropriation of certain anmounts of
the earnings reserve account; relating to the taxation
of income of individuals; relating to a paynent
against the individual income tax from the pernmanent
fund dividend disbursenent; repealing tax credits
applied against the tax on individuals wunder the
Al aska Net Incone Tax Act; and providing for an
effective date."

1: 37: 02 PM

BRANDON  S. SPANGCS, DEPUTY DI RECTOR, TAX DI VI SI ON,
DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE, addressed two questions from the
previ ous day.

Co-Chair Foster interjected that Representative Birch
j oi ned the neeting.

M. Spanos continued that the first question was posed by
Representati ve Pruitt regar di ng S Corporations. He
indicated that there was no change in the treatnment of S
Corporations. He noted that S Corporations were taxed under
the previous version, however, the current version of the
bill provided nore clarity on how to identify the source of
its income. He identified AS 43.19 and AS 43.20 regarding
the multi state tax conpact referenced in HB 115 and
delineated that the sections identified how to source
Al askan i ncone. He added that the bill put the S
Corporations "on the sane playing field as any corporation”
in the state. For npbst corporations, Al askan property,
payroll, and sales, were accounted for over property,
payroll, and sales in other places and created an
apportioned fornmula that determ ned Alaskan inconme. He
i kened the process to the state taking a slice of a large
pie. He offered that inconme from S Corporations was passed
through to the individual and the sane forrmula was applied
to determne the Al askan slice of the incone. O herw se

"there were many ganes corporations could play" to exclude
income the state would tax as Al askan under C Corporation
st at ut es.

Co-Chair Foster relayed that M. Spanos would be review ng
the fiscal notes on Thursday.

M. Spanos concluded that the current version of HB 115 in
relation to S Corporations and Partnerships identified

House Fi nance Conmmittee 2 03/28/17 1:36 P. M



Al aska sourced income from nmulti state or nmultinational
cor porations or part ner shi ps. W t hout t he specific
| anguage, litigation could result and the Departnent of
Revenue (DOR) would have difficulty in admnistering the
t ax.

1: 41: 55 PM

Representative Pruitt asked whether an S Corporation would
pay tax on all its earning or only the anmount distributed
to individuals. M. Spanos relayed that ultimtely paying
the tax was the individual's responsibility. A provision
allowed the S Corporation to pay on the individuals behalf.
He detailed that the S Corporation provided the K-1 form
t hat identified the shareholders distributive share.
Representative Pruitt was trying to understand what the S
Corporation would have to file since the inconme was a
"passt hrough."” He wondered why the state would mandate the
S Corporation to file a return if the shareholders were
filing. M. Spanos did not see a provision in the bill that
required a separate filing for S Cor por at i ons.
Representative Pruitt related that he had received
guestions from constituents regarding S Corporation filing.
He concluded from M. Spanos' answer that S Corporations
would not be required under the bill to do anything
different or additional than currently required. He asked
for reassurance. M. Spanos indicated that Representative
Pruitt was correct.

1: 45: 23 PM

Co-Chair Seaton clarified that if an S Corporation retained
noney rather than distributing it to shareholders it would
not be liable to pay a tax or file a form M. Spanos
confirmed Co-Chair Seaton was correct.

Representative WIlson wanted to better understand how the
tax affected an Al askan trust versus a nonresident trust

M. Spanos informed the commttee that trusts were
conplicated. He delineated that a trust created by a
resident would not be different than a trust created by a
nonresident. Representative WIson believed that the bill
t axed residenti al trusts and nonr esi denti al trusts
differently. She reported that the state had "done a | ot of
work in the last few years"” trying to attract out-of-state
trusts to boost Al askan banks. She ascertained that the
| ack of an income tax and the state's flexible banking |aws

House Fi nance Conmmittee 3 03/28/17 1:36 P. M



were the nmajor attractants for nonresident trusts. She was
trying to figure out how out-of-state trusts would be
affected by the proposed tax and whether the earning would
be taxed. M. Spanos responded that at a "very basic |evel™
an individual resident could sinply place assets in a trust
to avoid paying a tax if resident trusts were not taxed

The department's consultant recomended taxing all trusts
"to avoid any ganes" by broadening the base and | owering
the rate. The admnistration had heard feedback favoring
the state's treatnment of trusts that provided protections
from creditors and other protections as well as offering a
tax haven due to the repeal of the incone tax. He relayed
that the protections were still in place under the proposed
income tax. He interpreted that the bill would only tax
Al askan sourced income on nonresident trusts and trusts
managed outside the state would not be a resident trust.

1: 50: 16 PM

Representative WIson asked how nmuch noney had been
invested in trusts in the state. M. Spanos did not know
the answer to her question. He added that trusts received a
deduction for the amount it distributed; if it distributed
all its income it owed zero tax. He concluded that trust
tax was based not on its assets but how nuch earned incone
that remained after distributions each year. Representative
W son provided a hypothetical scenario of being a resident
of Alabama with a trust in Al aska. She inquired whether the
trust paid the proposed state inconme tax on its earnings if
the trust made noney in the state. M. Spanos responded in
the negative but clarified the trust would pay a tax on
earnings from assets held in the state. He comrmunicated
that the earnings were not subject to a tax if the incone
was earned through securities or sone other asset that was
not held in Alaska but was nmnmanaged it the state

Representative WIson asked whether she would be taxed on
earnings if she had a trust conprised of only securities in
the state. M. Spanos replied in the affirmative and
offered that as a resident any inconme from a trust,

regardless of where it was |ocated would be taxed

Representative WIson deduced that "it would be snmarter”
for a resident to maintain a trust in another state to
avoid taxes. M. Spanos answered that distributions from
the trust would still be taxed regardless of |ocation.

However, if the trust held the distributions inconme tax
woul d not be owed. He furthered that Al aska was a "current
destination"” for trusts because of the lack of incone tax.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 4 03/28/17 1:36 P. M



Representative WIson asked whether the trust was liable
for state incone tax if the trust was profitable, but the
incone was not distributed. M. Spanos responded that the
answer depended on where the assets in the trust were
| ocated. He indicated that if the trust was "non-Al askan"
wi thout any Al askan assets the trust would not be taxed
under the proposed inconme tax and if it was housed in
anot her state without an incone tax.

1: 53: 35 PM

Representative W/ son discerned that the earnings from the
original inconme formng the trust would be taxed in Al aska,
but if she subsequently noved the trust to a place wthout
an incone tax and did not take a distribution she would not
owe any tax. M. Spanos thought that a trust attorney would
advise her to do so but whether the nove was beneficial
depended on other factors. Representative WIson renmarked
that it seened that Al askans woul d be penalized for having
a trust in the state because the bill favored out-of-state
trusts. She thought that Al askans would nove their trusts
to nore favorable tax reginmes. She had a problem with the
provi si on. She thought it was  not fair to treat
nonresi dents nore favorably than residents.

Co-Chair Seaton interjected that an Al askan resident would
pay a tax on income no natter where it was derived from He
enphasi zed that an Al askan resident would pay an
apportionnment of taxes to another state with an inconme tax
on incone earned or assets held in the other state. If an
Al askan earned noney in a state without an inconme tax the
earnings were only taxable in Al aska under the proposed
income tax. He offered that if an Al askan earned incone in
a state with an incone tax a credit was earned under the
mul ti-state conpact for the taxes paid to the state where
the incone was derived from

Representative WIson expressed confusion and wanted
clarification. She provided the exanple of establishing a
trust with a stock and bond portfolio in the State of
Del aware; a state without an income tax and she did not
take a distribution. She understood that since she did not
take a distribution she was not subject to tax in Al aska.
She furthered that if she nmaintained the trust in Al aska
she would be taxed even if she did not take a distribution
under HB 115. M. Spanos responded that Representative
Wl son would not be taxed but the trust would be taxed. He

House Fi nance Conmmittee 5 03/28/17 1:36 P. M



agreed that if there were no Al askan assets in her Del aware
trust, the trust was "a form of a tax haven.”
Representative WIlson reiterated her concerns regarding the
legislation mintaining the favorable tax haven for
nonresidents while taxing resident trusts. She believed
that it would now be nore advantageous for residents to
take trusts out of state while the state was sinmultaneously
encour agi ng nonresi dent trusts.

1: 59: 13 PM

Representati ve Pruitt conveyed guesti ons from his
constituents. He asked whether expenses related to a snall
business were a wite off. M. Spanos answered in the
affirmative and explained that it was simlar to filing a
federal return. Representative Pruitt asked about taxable
anounts on | RA distributions and pensions. He wondered how
M. Spanos thought the provisions regarding the itenms would
drive the decisions of senior residents on whether to
reside in the state or to leave. He spoke to taxing
pensi ons and | RAs and asked "how big of a burden" the taxes
woul d place on seniors. M. Spanos could not answer the
guestion and added that the department did not obtain an
econonm ¢ study on the issue. He indicated that sone states
had an exenption or credits for seniors or other neasures.
Representative Pruitt was interested how taxing retirenent
income would affect sonme of the seniors under the poverty
line. He reported that according to the Council on Aging
the state had the fastest growing rate of senior citizens
in the country and wanted to wunderstand the economc
inpacts of a tax. He also asked about nedical expenses
being "under the AGQ (adjusted gross incone) |ine” on the
proposed state incone tax. He understood that significant
medi cal expenses were not deductible under the state incone
tax. M. Spanos replied in the affirmative.

2:03: 08 PM

Vice-Chair Gara referred to the comments regarding |ow
incone seniors. He remnded the conmmittee that the bill
exenpted incone below $14.3 thousand per individual. M.
Spanos agreed with the statenent. Vice-Chair Gara indicated
that for each $1 thousand dollars of incone the tax was 2.5
percent. He asked whether the statenment was correct. M

Spanos indicated Vice-Chair Gara was correct. Vice-Chair
Gara asked whether and Al askan who wanted to remain in the
state but avoid a tax on their trust would "locate their

House Fi nance Conmmittee 6 03/28/17 1:36 P. M



trust in one of the nine states without an incone tax." M.
Spanos replied in the affirmative and qualified that the
trust could also be in one of the states that did not tax
trusts and in both instances the trust could only be
conprised of "non-sourcable assets" such as securities and
bonds. Vice-Chair Gara voiced that "he had no idea what the
trust industry was in the state" and never received a clear
expl anation. He supposed that whoever "nmade noney" on the
trust industry in the state would pay taxes on their
income. M. Spanos responded in the affirmative. Vice-Chair
Gara inquired whether the bill would tax the inconme from a
New York resident who had their trust nanaged in Al aska.
M. Spanos indicated that was the intent of the bill.

2:05:50 PM

Vice-Chair Gara noted that historically in the state S
Cor por at i ons, Limted Liability Conpanies (LLO), and
Part ner shi ps wer e t axed t hr ough di stributions to
i ndi viduals. He queried whether when the state abolished
its incone tax, these types of businesses were currently
not taxed except for C Corporations. M. Spanos responded
affirmatively.

Co-Chair Seaton clarified that a married couple filing
jointly would not pay a tax if their incone was under $30
t housand. M. Spanos responded affirmatively. Co-Chair
Seaton asked how adm nistering the state incone tax would
burden the departnent in relation "to the earlier version."
M. Spanos relayed that "the burden was significant either
way." The newest version was nore specific and directive
than the previous version that was based on a progressive
tax. He delineated that the current version of the bill
identified Alaska sourced incone for non-residents which
provided «clarity and specified how to apportion and
all ocate the inconme. The previous version was vague and
woul d have forced the departnent to develop regulations
which were out of the scope of DOR s authority or to
rebuild the individual's federal return to determ ne the
tax. The current version was "significantly sinpler” to
adm nister. He specified that the information necessary to
determ ne the tax on Al aska sourced inconme used the federa
AG@ and the Alaska sourced income and applied the defined
factor to a tax bracket that was the same as a resident's
tax bracket. The formula, called the "Cal Method of Taxing"
was developed in California. The nethod withstood

House Fi nance Conmmittee 7 03/28/17 1:36 P. M



substantial litigation and was deened valid. He favored the
new version that "nade many issues black and white."

2:10:19 PM

Co- Chair Seaton wondered about audits. He suggested that
since the tax was based on the AG the state could rely on
federal Internal Revenue Service (IRS) audits. He asked
whet her he was correct. M. Spanos replied that using the
AG enabled DOR to rely on the IRS return, even if the
return was not audited. He noted that the state or IRS
could perform an audit. He shared that the chance of an
audit incentivized correct self-reporting and for those who
were audited, DOR was highly confident that the returns
woul d be accurate. He indicated that a provision in the
bill required an individual to file a newreturn if the IRS
altered their tax return. The state <currently shared
information with the IRS regarding C Corporations, which
could easily include individual tax payers. Co-Chair Seaton
noted the difficulty for the state to hire auditors. He
wondered whether nore auditors would be available to do
i ndi vidual incone tax audits versus oil and gas tax audits.
M. Spanos answered that the topic was under discussion by
the departnent. He reported that there were nmany nore
people that had experience in the individual inconme tax
realm However, if the income tax was instituted, incone
tax preparers would nake nore nobney in the private sector
with the increased business in the state. He guessed that
the scenario might make it challenging for the departnent
to find qualified individuals. He conjectured that out-of-
state individual incone tax preparers, accountants, or
auditors would be easier to recruit than oil and gas or
corporate auditors.

2:14:11 PM

Co-Chair Seaton was attenpting to determne the difficulty
of filing the forms. He wondered about the burden for the
i ndividuals or businesses to file a return conpared to the
federal returns. M. Spanos hoped that everyone would file
online. He comunicated that currently the departnment's web
portal for <corporations made filing easy and guided the
user through the process by choosing the sinplest form and
offered the |east options. He suggested that the online
system for individuals would require W2 information and
only ask several nore questions pertaining to the state.
Commercial software was adapted to include the state's

House Fi nance Conmmittee 8 03/28/17 1:36 P. M



income tax fornms added on as an option with federal tax
forms. He indicated that if an individual was using a paper
form a separate incone schedule would be included. He
anticipated a two-page formfor paper filers.

2:16: 47 PM

Representative WIson wondered whether native corporation
di vidends would be taxed or exenpted. M. Spanos responded
that the dividends were taxed at the federal |evel and
would be taxed at the state level. Representative WIson
cited statistics that oil and gas job wages were 11 percent
of the total state wages amounting to $2 billion, nore than
2.5 times the overall average as of June 2016 and that the
i ndustry lost 3,000 jobs. She asked whether the statistics
were incorporated into the cal culations of how nuch revenue
the state would gain from an incone tax. M. Spanos
responded that the departnment had used the 2015 avail abl e
data fromthe IRS. Representative WIson asked whether nore
current data was available that included the job |oss
figures. M. Spanos was not certain current data was
avai |l able and would consult with DOR econom sts. He would
provide the information to the conmittee. Representative
W son thought "true nunmbers" were necessary goi ng forward.

2:19: 02 PM

Co-Chair Foster related that nmany native corporation
shareholders in "northwest" Alaska did not pay federal
taxes on their taxes due to loss carry forwards or other
exenptions. He asked M. Spanos to expand on the subject.
M. Spanos wanted to address native corporation's taxes
first. He indicated that Al aska Native Corporations were
for-profit businesses and were "definitely" taxed. A native
corporation with net operating |osses would not pay tax due
to loss carry forwards. The dividends to sharehol ders woul d
be taxed in the same way as they were taxed at the federa
| evel. Co-Chair Foster informed the conmttee that many of
the native corporations were fornmed in 1971 or 1972. He
relayed that native corporations recently informed its
sharehol ders that they were required to pay taxes on their
di vi dends because the corporations were becomng nore
profitable.

2:21: 24 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 9 03/28/17 1:36 P. M



Representative Pruitt asked if the fiscal notes were based
on the 2015 data. M. Spanos replied that if the departnent
determined that "significant" information was avail able
that would inprove the fiscal note, the information would
be included. He added that DOR had previously determ ned
that the 2015 IRS data was the best information avail able.
Representative Pruitt assunmed better data neant nore
accurate. M. Spanos responded that the fiscal note data
was a best estimate of future tax revenue. Representative
Pruitt wanted to ensure the fiscal notes were "not going to
make a statement.” He could not find information in the
bill about penalties and interest for non-paynent. M.
Spanos conveyed that the division had identified nany
adm nistrative sections that were not included in the
| egislation but was aware that the desired |evel of detai
took a substantial amount of work to devel op. The specifics
of the tax itself was nost inportant. The state had
existing tax statutes relating to penalties in AS. 42.05
dealing with l|ate paynents for filing, negligence, and
fraud. The division wanted to include penalties related to
substantial understatenent for individual taxpayers. There
were several other admnistrative sections that other
states wutilized the division would like to "mmc."
Representative Pruitt asked whether the penalties were the
sane or different than the penalties for other taxes the
state currently adm nistered. M. Spanos answered that the
di vision incorporated the sane penalties as the IRS in the
state's corporate inconme tax statutes and noted the incone
tax would also incorporate the IRS penalties. He suggested
that the penalty section in AS 42.05 could be applied to
all tax types.

2:26: 22 PM

Representati ve Pruitt asked about t he departnments’
timeframe for offering anendnents to the admnistrative
sections. M. Spanos answered that the timefrane was the
same as the nenbers’ anendnent deadline. He thought that
the timefranme was short and noted the division would
include a few admnistrative provisions they deened
necessary. He nentioned the difficulty of proving fraud in
incone tax cases related to the inclusion of penalties for
substanti al under st at enent.

Co-Chair Foster interjected that anendnents were due by
4:00 pmon Friday of the current week.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 10 03/28/17 1:36 P. M



Representative Pruitt wondered whether the conmittee
"should be noving a piece of legislation that did not have
all of the pieces in it." M. Spanos thought that the bil
was sufficient in its current form but expressed his desire
for nore admnistrative sections that nade admnistering
the tax sinpler. Representative Pruitt believed that the
commttee process was responsible for including all
necessary provisions in |egislation.

HB 115 was HEARD and HELD in commttee for further
consi derati on.

Co-Chair Foster reviewed the agenda for the follow ng day.
Public testinony woul d be heard the foll ow ng day.

#
ADJ QURNVENT

2:29: 56 PM

The neeting was adjourned at 2:30 p. m

House Fi nance Committee 11 03/28/17 1:36 P. M



